
Milford Township Board of Supervisors’ Minutes 
September 2, 2025 - 7:00 pm 

 
 
Call to Order: Mr. Mininger called the September 2, 2025 Board of Supervisors meeting to order at 7:01 pm. 
 
Approval of Minutes: Approval of August 5, 2025 and August 13, 2025 Meeting Minutes. Mr. Haberle stated he 
has a question regarding the Krevitz zoning variance request announced at the August 5, 2025 meeting. Mr. Vey 
reported the hearing was rescheduled to September 9, 2025 due to the applicant of Happy Hounds not having legal 
counsel. Correspondence has been received regarding what is happening, future construction, on 663 along with 
previous zoning hearing board decisions. The businesses currently located on site are not peak-high traffic 
generators, however; there are other things that should be addressed such as PennDOT signage and a sign that states 
no left turns. There are improvements going on across the street which include Abby Lane and left hand turns into 
the site with the with right in and right out only. Mr. Vey stated he is looking to see if the Board has any input and if 
so, a letter could be written to take that input into consideration. A trip distribution calculation could be done to see 
what the volume is at peak hour. Mr. Vey stated he and Mr. Kravitsky were on site for 5 minutes and there were no 
vehicles in or out of the site. There appears to be no retail service business on site. Mr. Vey noted we should get a 
handle on what they are putting on the road with what is happening with Milford Village on 663. A lefthand turn 
lane for Abby Lane along with a pork chop, that won’t match up on the opposite lane is proposed. Mr. Gary Bender 
of Sleepy Hollow Road stated he has had almost 4 head on collisions at that site from vehicles making an illegal left 
into the site with no blinker to notify, traveling towards Quakertown. Mr. Bender asked why a camera couldn’t be 
put on the building to monitor for 30-days and noted there is a PennDOT sign that should have been removed years 
ago. The pork chop does not stop a motorist from making the left, the sign is misleading and should have been 
removed. Mr. Bender said he has spoken to the owner who was concerned and said he is willing to put up a camera 
and talk to the tenants. Mr. Mininger said these are all good points. Mrs. Harper stated all Zoning Hearing Board 
decisions state no left turns with right in right out and said the Board can send a letter referencing Section 808. 
changes to non-conforming. Mr. Bender said the new use will generate a lot more traffic in the morning and the 
afternoon. Mr. Haberle stated he is okay with the prior decisions of the Zoning Hearing Board. Mrs. Harper said an 
action would require a motion such as sending the solicitor to the meeting and we are not doing that so sending a 
letter is not an action. Mr. Haberle said is in favor of sending a letter regarding traffic generation, illegal lefts into the 
site, and the addressing the concerns with signage.  

Mr. Mininger made a MOTION to approve the August 5, 2025 and August 13, 2025 Meeting Minutes. The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Strunk and passed unanimously.  

 
Financial Report: Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to approve the bills list for payment. The motion was seconded 
by Mr. Strunk and passed unanimously.  
 
2026 Minimum Municipal Obligation. Mr. Haberle made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Strunk, to approve 
payment of the 2026 Minimum Municipal Obligation in the amount of $133,899. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Zoning Hearing Board: Mr. Kravitsky announce the Zoning Hearing Board will meet on Tuesday, September 9, 
2025 to hear the application of Tracy A. Conboy for a variance from Section 404.B1.b, to permit a rear yard setback 
of 58 feet where 100 feet is required and to allow an impervious surface coverage of 19.6% where 12% is permitted 
for the property located at 1776 Walnut Lane, TMP No. 23-007-152-001. Mr. Kravitsky stated a vacant house exists 
on the property. The applicant wants to knock down the 1870’s structure and build a new structure farther back on 
the property. They would like to go out, not up. The same septic system will be used. They are looking to increase 
the impervious surface and cut into the setback.  
 
Subdivision/Land Development Plan Review: 
Gabriel, Preliminary/Final Plan of Minor Subdivision, 2065 Old Woods Road, TMP No. 23-020-120-001. Mr. 
Mease of Mease Engineering was in attendance to present the proposal on behalf of the applicant, Mike Gabriel. The 
applicant proposes to subdivide a 9.55-acre parcel into two separate lots. The property is located in the RA Zoning 
District and is mostly wooded. The plan proposed a B5 Cluster Subdivision use which would allow the creation of 3-
lots. Proposed lot 2 will consist of 9/10 of an acre with the remainder being lot 1. Soil tests were done for primary 
and alternate sites. The Planning Commission made a recommendation of Preliminary/Final Plan approval at the 
August 27, 2025 Planning Commission Meeting. The review letter issued by Pennoni is fairly clean with waiver 



requests and drafting items. Mrs. Harper asked Mr. Mease if he has received the draft resolution. Mr. Mease stated 
he has not and was given a copy of the draft. Mrs. Harper stated it is contingent on the engineer review letter and 
grants the requested waivers. Mr. Mease said that is typical for a minor subdivision. Mrs. Harper said a deed 
restriction must state that open space must be provided with any future subdivision. Mr. Mininger said he has no 
objection with a note on the plan stating that open space must be provided with any further subdivision. Mr. Mease 
confirmed one more lot could be created, and a note is provided on the plan. Mrs. Harper stated she does recommend 
a deed restriction as no one ever looks at the plan. Mrs. Harper said the conditions noted in the resolution of approval 
include: revision of the plan to comply with the Pennoni letter dated August 21, 2025; further subdivision of the 
parcel shall show the required open space; a new deed for each lot shall be approved and shall contain easement 
language for the use and maintenance of the shared driveway; the applicant shall pay a required $1,500 fee for traffic 
impact and $1,850 for park and recreation for the new lot. The approved waivers include: a waiver from planting 
street trees along Old Woods Road; roadway improvements which includes curbs and sidewalks; installing 
streetlights; allowing the existing driveway to be within 5 feet of the property line to allow its use as a shared 
driveway; a lot depth to be less at times than lot width due to the irregular configuration of the site and existing 
driveway; and to allow the Record Plan and Natural Resources Plan along with the Aerial Photography to fulfill the 
requirements of producing an existing Site Context Map, a Preliminary Resource Impact Plan, A Natural Resource 
Impact Map and Site Location Map. Mr. Mease stated he has no problem with that. Mr. Vey asked if the exact 
acreage of required open space should be included resulting from the need to go back to the plan. Mr. Mease stated 
that will be included in the revision. Mr. Haberle asked if the waiver of road improvements has been discussed. Mr. 
Mease noted a fee in lieu is being offered. Mr. Mease also noted that Mr. Gabriel has met with Mr. Winkler to 
discuss the roadway and there were no issues. The driveway pipe is being replaced and enlarged to handle the water 
and will extend farther than the driveway. Mr. Vey asked if there were any boulders right up against the roadway to 
which Mr. Winkler stated there are not. There was no further discussion at this time.  

Mr. Mininger made a MOTION to approve Resolution No. 2025-14 granting Preliminary/Final Plan Approval 
of Minor Subdivision with conditions for the Application of Mike Gabriel for the property located at 2065 Old 
Woods Road, TMP No. 23-010-120-001, along with approval of the requested waivers. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Haberle and passed unanimously.  
 

Last Chance Ranch, Preliminary Plan of Land Development, Allentown Road, TMP Nos. 23-021-052-005 & 
23-021-053. Mr. Mease of Mease Engineering was in attendance to present the proposal on behalf of the applicant, 
Last Chance Ranch. The applicant proposes the construction of an office/kennel, a barn, an outdoor arena, a manure 
shed, an equipment shed, several shelters and coops for a Commercial Kennel/Intensive Agricultural Use. Mr. Mease 
said the Board should be familiar with the proposal as the applicant did appear before the Board with a sketch plan 
for Conditional Use approval. Mr. Mease noted this plan is identical to the sketch plan that was presented with the 
Conditional Use application. One minor change was made to the barn which was north/south facing and is now 
east/west facing due to how flat the area was for required stormwater controls. Mr. Mease stated he is in receipt of 
the Pennoni review letter dated August 26, 2025. The review letter is very clean with a few things that will still need 
to be complied with such as outside agency approvals. The applicant has submitted a list of waiver requests relative 
to stormwater which Pennoni can touch on. DEP has issued new guidelines for NPDES that created some changes to 
design requirements. Milford’s ordinances do not line up with these changes. Mr. Mease said they must first make 
sure DEP agrees with the design. Mr. Mease requested input or a vote on the waivers, so they know how to proceed 
with the plan. Mrs. Harper said the waivers were not included in the draft resolution and it can be discussed. Mr. 
Mease asked the Board if there were any questions on the proposed layout. Mr. Haberle stated he does not have any 
questions on the layout and asked about the waiver request for roadway improvements. Mr. Mease said the 
development is quite a few hundred feet off Allentown Road with only 200’ width of road frontage. Curbs and 
sidewalks are not characteristic in this area. The second waiver is to permit HDPE pipe as the basin will be privately 
owned, not maintained by the township. This type of pipe is easier than concrete. They are asking for 15” pipe due to 
minimum flows. A waiver is requested from locating features within 400’ of the property. The ariel plan submitted 
shows existing features within 1,000 feet of the property. A waiver is requested to permit the parking to be within 
10’ of a building, the office and kennel. There is a 6’ wide sidewalk provided between the building and parking area. 
Mr. Baldwin stated he has no objections to the waivers requested. Mr. Haberle noted the turning radius comment 
was addressed per the Fire Marshal review letter. He asked if the comment found in the review letter recommending 
that the office/kennel be equipped with a continuously monitored fire alarm system to ensure prompt emergency 
response would be put in place. Mr. Mease stated it would. Mr. Haberle asked what the width of the driveway is. Mr. 



Mease stated 30’ at the entrance then narrows down to 20’ which would provide for dual lanes in and out of the site 
the whole length. Mr. Mininger asked about events on the property. It was noted that birthday parties are held on the 
property with a maximum of 50-60 people. Mrs. Harper stated that events must get conditional use approval from the 
Board of Supervisors for each event. It was noted that there would not be enough time to apply for conditional use 
approval prior to the event. Mr. Vey said the expense that goes along with the application is $1500 and asked if they 
could do a hearing to generically, like the fire company carnival, address birthday parties so every event doesn’t cost 
$1500. Mrs. Harper said possibly, if they get the approval in advance. Mr. Haberle noted the black-tie gala would 
require conditional use approval. This is the open house that was discussed during their conditional use hearing. It 
was stated that facts on birthday parties could be presented to the Zoning Officer, and he could make a 
determination. Mr. Haberle said we have created a tiered system on what needs to be done and asked if there is a 
way to do that outside of changing the ordinance. Mrs. Harper said there is, approval could be granted to these 
events after the facts are provided. Birthday parties are the only events occurring frequently. Mrs. Harper said a 
conditional use application could be filed for several parties and the details provided on one application. They could 
write out a sample application which may be a way to do this in context of final approval which will help get a 
handle on the events. Mr. Vey noted a temporary community event shall be limited to occurrences of not more than 
seven days per occurrence. Such occurrences shall be limited to not more than four occurrences in a calendar year 
with at least thirty days between occurrences. Mr. Vey said this is oriented to the bigger things. Mr. Mease said there 
are two other items to address. Comment SALDO 5 addressed recreation facilities or a fee in lieu and noted a lot of 
what they do is recreation on this site. He would like to have a discussion on what is required as he did not see 
anything on the fee schedule. Mr. Haberle said the fee ties into square footage in SALDO Section 525, and there 
should be some type of recreation facility. Mr. Mease said with a large barn and run areas he would prefer to count 
the operation area and hopes that is the intent of the ordinance. Mr. Haberle said even at 50,000 square feet that ties 
into a baseball field or soccer field, below that would be playground equipment. Mrs. Harper said Section 525 states 
fair market of the land. Mr. Mease said a Traffic Impact Study is called for with 100 trips per day generally looking 
at peak hours. There will be a change of shifts for volunteers. If you discount the shift change that would account for 
82 trips per day. The applicant is requesting a waiver for the submission of a Traffic Impact Study. Mr. Mininger 
said with 114 trips spread out though out the day he does not feel it is necessary. Mr. Mininger said he does have 
concerns with the sight distance on Allentown Road. Mr. Mease noted a PennDOT permit will be obtained. There 
was no further discussion at this time.  

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to approve Resolution No. 2025-15 granting Preliminary Plan Approval of Land 
Development with conditions for the Application of Last Chance Ranch for the property located along 
Allentown Road, TMP Nos. 23-021-052-005 & 23-021-053. The motion was seconded by Mr. Mininger and 
passed unanimously.  
 

Other Business: 
Landowner Agreement(s) C2P2 Grant Riparian Plantings. Mr. Vey reported as part of the C2P2 Grant for 
Riparian Plantings on township owned property, the township must enter into a Community & Watershed Foresty 
Practice Installation Agreement with ourselves. These agreements are for the Milford Township/Faith Christian site, 
behind Faith Christian on the Unami Creek, and the Milford Township/Morgan Creek site off Trumbauersville Road. 
The agreement notes the plantings will not be cut, removed, or disturbed for 25-years.  

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to approve the Community & Watershed Foresty Practice Installation 
Agreement(s) for the Milford Township/Faith Christian site and Milford Township/Morgan Creek site. Mr. 
Strunk seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   
 

Crossings Way Dedication of Public Road. Mrs. Harper said a Deed of Dedication for Crossings Way has been 
prepared. This will include Crossings Way as a Township owned and maintained roadway. Mr. Shane Penn, 
President of The Crossings of Bucks County Community Association and Treasurer, Dave Johnson were in 
attendance to answer any questions. Mr. Haberle asked if the road we are taking over is in good condition. Mr. 
Mininger asked if there was a dead end, stump road. Mr. Winkler said there is, and it is tight there. Mr. Vey said the 
area is not to be used for parking in the winter. Mr. Winkler said he has no objections to the taking of the road as 
long as they abide by the parking regulations.   

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Strunk, and passed unanimously, to accept the Deed of 
Dedication of Crossings Way.  

 



Appointment of Bryan Malachowski to serve as an Alternate Member of the Milford Township Zoning 
Hearing Board.  

Mr. Haberle made a MOTION to appoint Mr. Bryan Malachowski to serve as an Alternate Member of the 
Milford Township Zoning Hearing Board. The motion was seconded by Mr. Mininger and passed unanimously.  
 

Milford Township Volunteer Fire Company Benefits of Stipend/Award Program. Joe Sink, Deputy Chief, 
stated a year ago there was an internal discussion in the fire house regarding the LOSAP program. There was some 
back and forth with information regarding the bylaws. A discussion was had on a stipend program instead of a 
LOSAP program. Conversations were had with others who have allowances where you pay out members for set 
services through the year. They want to honor the LOSAP Program. A matrix was created for the length of service 
and where they stand this year. This will go back to 2023. The benefits are not just for fire fighters but also for 
members. With this in place it would also be the hope to draw in new members where time for service would be 
paid. Volunteerism is hurting and no one can give the time they used to, and training requirements have quadrupled. 
If approved, the fire company is looking to pay out at the end of November. The thought is to not manage the stipend 
program internally with the treasurer but to hire outside. Everything that has a dollar value will be put into the new 
system with 1099’s being distributed. Mr. Mininger asked Mr. Sink if the officers feel like this would be more of an 
incentive to join. Mr. Sink said yes. The 18-20 year old isn’t looking for what is coming to them down the road, they 
want it now. Mr. Sink said he has also asked current members and a couple have stated that it would benefit them as 
well. Mr. Sink asked if there were any questions or objections. Mr. Vey said procedurally, there was inclusion in the 
budget, and the wording may need to be changed. He is unsure if there is a need to do anything other than a 
resolution stating that the township is going to commit “x” amount of dollars to the program as a contribution to the 
fire company to run the program. Mrs. Harper asked how the last program was done. Mr. Vey stated it was never set 
up officially. The funds were set in a reserve account. Mr. Sink said 2025 will give a good idea of the figure now that 
the system is up and running. He sees the funding being right around $20,000. Mrs. Harper said from the township 
prospective, the township can make a contribution to the Fire Company then the Fire Company will issue the 
payouts to the members and notes there should be an approval by a resolution. Mr. Haberle noted the township has 
put aside funds for the past 5-years. Mr. Mininger asked if that was done by resolution to which Mr. Vey said, no 
that was done with the budget with funds being put into a reserve account because the program was not established. 
Mr. Mininger asked what the official plan name would be. Mr. Sink said the Member Award Program. Mr. Vey said 
he would like to sit with Mr. Sink to discuss how the program evolves in the future. There was no further discussion.  
 
Correspondence: 
Fire Police Assistance Request(s). Mr. Vey reported a request for Fire Police assistance has been received for the 
Upper Perk Downtown Halloween Parade taking place on Sunday, October 26, 2025. 

Mr. Mininger made a MOTION to approve the Fire Police assistance request for the Upper Perk Downtown 
Halloween Parade taking place on Sunday, October 26, 2025. The motion was seconded by Mr. Haberle and 
passed unanimously.  

 
Bucks County Airport Authority Meeting Minutes. Mr. Mininger stated the expansion of the car parking lot is 
finished. Mr. Bender said Friday night a hot air balloon almost hit the electric wire on his property and asked if that 
was a take-off path. He noted he has planes over his house all the time along with hot air balloons. He said the 
balloon could clear the transmission line which is 60’, then it dropped and almost touched the pole to push away 
from the distribution line. He stated they are not supposed to fly over animals and should be 500’ off the ground. He 
asked if the Airport Authority could instruct to meet the FAA regulations. Mr. Mininger said the Airport Authority 
has nothing to do with hot air balloons. They are in the FAA air space, which is nothing to do with the Airport 
Authority. He further noted that a hot balloon would have the right of way. The only thing they can control is the up 
and down. Mr. Bender asked who regulates. Mr. Mininger said the FAA.   
 
Quakertown Area Planning Committee Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey reported the QAPC minutes state Crystal 
Gilchrist was in attendance to present an overview of the Perkiomen Mapping and Flood Mitigation Study. Mr. Vey 
stated on Friday he received field studies form the engineer. Milford’s focus is on the Licking Creek and Route 
663/Allentown Road, below 663 has severe erosion. The study took them to Joanne Drive, Beachwood, and Tirjan 
Avenue. Two concepts were presented, culvert replacement and flood plain restoration. Pipes would be replaced for 
more capacity and restoration up stream with the excavation of sediment. The stream would be reconnected from the 
flood plain with decreased streambank erosion. The township has been given the opportunity to provide comments. 
Mr. Vey stated if there are any comments he would be happy to pass them along. There is a localized benefit with 



the culvert replacement. The flood plain is on the Licking Creek where we looked at the Gehman Farm for 
mitigation. A series of properties have been looked at down to 663, such as Hughey and Emerson with an estimated 
quarter to half million dollars for mitigation. There is a good potential to get things rolling. Mr. Haberle said he is 
fine with it. Mr. Vey stated they are looking at putting feedback together at this point.     
 
Milford Township Water Authority Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey stated the minutes are available for review. It was 
noted the water tank will be done this month. Mr. Vey stated the tank is what is holding up the laterals on Allentown 
Road. Mrs. Harper stated she noticed in the minutes that they do not want to switch financing for the NID. Mr. Vey 
said he is not sure what financial assurances they have, and it is a different entity. Mrs. Harper said she thought she 
would mention it in case the NID came back to us and the minutes state they are going to issue them a letter. Mrs. 
Harper said there is nothing the township needs to do.  
 
Milford Trumbauersville Area Sewer Authority Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey stated the minutes are available for 
review. Pump Station #4 had a routine inspection done by DEP, there were no violations found. It was noted that 
with the change of running the flow to Pump Station #4 the Airport Interceptor, the Authority can decommission the 
station. They are ensuring there are no conflicts with the PennDOT right-of-way plans for the Route 663 roadway 
improvements. The minutes note the Copper Study is under review. Plans were reviewed for the Turnpike 
Interchange. There will be a utility meeting to work out any conflicts. Mr. Vey reported we got an extensive review 
from DEP on the Act 537 Plan. The review was good. We did not have clearly identified alternatives. We have 
restructured and review down to the implementation schedule. Mr. Baldwin has coordinated with Pennoni and has 
real numbers for the plan. One of the items missing as an alternative was rerating the plant.   
 
Reports: 
Code Enforcement Departmental Report. Mr. Kravitsky presented the August 2025 Report. A total of 15 permits 
were issued in August: 9 residential renovations, 4 zoning, 1 commercial, and 1 residential addition. A total of 6 Use 
& Occupancy permits were issued, and 1 Zoning Hearing Board Application was received. 
 
Public Works Departmental Report. Mr. Winkler presented the August 2025 Report. The Public Works 
Department spent three days cleaning storm grates and cross pipes throughout the township from heavy rains. The 
crew repaired driveways with millings at Fernbrook Park, Wonsidler’s Grove, the Substation and Unami fishing 
parking lot. Three public works employees went for required CDL drug testing. The crew has also been out clearing 
site distances and clearing brush from around road signs. An annual inspection on the playground equipment was 
done in the parks with some minor repairs needed. 
 
Park Board Meeting Minutes. Mr. Vey presented the Park Board Meeting Minutes. Two members of Quakertown 
Youth Baseball Association were in attendance to voice concerns regarding dog owners utilizing the Molasses Creek 
Park baseball fields that the QYBA maintains under agreement with the township. The field was posted with “No 
Dogs” which did not help. QYBA is looking at locking the gate. With the long standing agreement in place, it is not 
a dog park. A number of plantings at the stage have died due to the site’s western exposure, last fall’s drought, and 
browsing by wild animals.  
 
There was a discussion about using field stone and terracing to give roots of trees a little extra support where there 
has been erosion. The Molasses Creek Park Splash Pad was quite a success. There was an issue with organic loading 
into the water reservoir which requires shocking the splash pad and waiting for the chlorine levels to come down to a 
safe level. There was an issue with the push button that was very expensive to replace. The splash pad now runs 
continually. There has been issues with e-bikes being ridden by youth on and off trail throughout may township 
parks as well as the complaints by other park users that the activity has generated. The Board discussed installing  
signage at all trailheads as well as more specific “No e-bikes” signage. The Board will discuss further. Mr. Mininger 
noted it will have to be handled very delicately. Mr. Vey stated it didn’t come to our attention until it was an issue. 
The Unami Creek fishing hole has a number of issues where there have been cars parked with people up and down 
the creek. There is a small tent encampment with some being abusive. This is supposed to be open for fishing then 
closed. We are going to be closing it again. The Mood’s are doing the farming in that area. The water is going into 
the fields and farmers are allowed to do maintenance. Mr. Vey said we are willing to help out, and he has indicated 
to Matt Mood to bring fill in, but an application must be submitted by a farmer to the Conservation District. Mr. 
Haberle asked if there is a plan to reopen during fishing season and if the plan was to close at the end of the season. 



Mr. Vey said yes. Mr. Vey reported there is a leaking at the Unami Creek Park skating rink. Mr. Winkler said they 
did try to fix it a couple of times, and the leak cannot be found.   
 
Milford Fire Company Report. Mr. Sink stated he had nothing to add at this time.   
 
Trumbauersville Fire Company Report. Mr. Vey reported a written report was received and is available for 
review.   
 
Managers Report.  
Hiring of full-time Public Works Employee. Mr. Vey stated there is an opening for a full-time Public Works 
employee. Mr. Winkler interviewed Timothy Pritchard and would like to move forward with hiring.  

Mr. Mininger made a MOTION to hire Timothy Pritchard as a full-time Public Works employee. The motion 
was seconded by Mr. Haberle and passed unanimously.  

 
Authorization to purchase 2400 N. Mill Hill Road. Mr. Vey reported the property at 2400 North Mill Hill Road is 
a foreclosed property. He has obtained an appraisal for an auction a few months ago. The realtor handling distressed 
properties got back to him to advise the tenant has been evicted. Mr. Vey stated we would be looking to knock the 
house down at the 5-pointed intersection to improve traffic. He is looking for authorization to proceed with 
purchasing the property at the appraised value of $175,000 in lieu of condemnation to avoid property transfer tax.  

Mr. Mininger made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Haberle and passed unanimously, to proceed with the 
acquisition of the property located at 2400 North Mill Hill Road.  

 
Possible repeal of Holding Tank Ordinance Nos. 22 & 28. Mr. Vey stated that the township originally passed the 
ordinance in 1973, and shortly thereafter it was amended to include additional regulations, such as contracts with 
haulers. In half a century plus, a lot has changed specifically the Health Department has jurisdiction and we have 
policy. We get involved with the operational end of it.  The township’s role has shifted more toward the operational 
side. Regarding the 537 Plan, Mr. Vey noted there remains a lack of clarity. He suggested that well permits should 
also be reviewed, he is unsure if it is preempted, the state has regulations, and the Health Department administers. 
Our ordinance says you can’t install a holding tank to build a house where nonresidential holding tanks are permitted 
as part of the state code. Mr. Vey stated that this may be the township’s last opportunity to revise its holding tank 
ordinances with the revised 537 Plan. He mentioned prior discussions with Mr. Haberle, where it was noted that the 
ordinances currently prohibit holding tanks. Mr. Vey asked whether this is an issue that should be reconsidered, 
given that the Health Department serves as both the enforcer and permit issuer. Mr. Haberle added that, when he first 
reviewed the matter, it was unclear who had authority over specific aspects of regulation. He stressed that revising 
the ordinance could provide clarity on control and bring the township in line with county practices. 
 
Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items:  
No public comment was received.  
 
Adjournment: With there being no further discussion Mr. Haberle made MOTION to adjourn the September 2, 
2025 Milford Township Board of Supervisors meeting at 8:43 p.m. Mr. Mininger seconded the motion. The motion 
passed unanimously. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 


